
 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

Meeting Date:  October 24, 2011 
 
The Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District will hold a Regular 
Meeting at 6:30 p.m., Monday, October 24, 2011, at the District offices, 500 
Davidson Street, Novato.   
 
Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection in the 
District Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, during normal business hours. They 
are also available on the District’s website:  www.novatosan.com. 
 

 
AGENDA 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL: 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please observe a three-minute time limit): 
 

 This item is to allow anyone present to comment on any subject not on the 
agenda, or to request consideration to place an item on a future agenda.  
Individuals will be limited to a three-minute presentation.  No action will be 
taken by the Board at this time as a result of any public comments made. 

4. REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 

a. Consider approval of minutes of the October 10, 2011 meeting. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

The Manager-Engineer has reviewed the following items. To her 
knowledge, there is no opposition to the action. The items can be acted on 
in one consolidated motion as recommended or may be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and separately considered at the request of any person. 

a. Approve Resolution providing relief on pH limits for Norcal Dyeworks 
facility and setting the revised pH limits 

b. Approve regular, payroll and payroll-related disbursements. 

6. WASTEWATER FACILITY UPGRADE PROJECT 72609: 

a. Staff report on odor control system re-work timeline. 



AGENDA/Board of Directors 
Meeting Date:  October 24, 2011 
 

2 

7. CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM: 

a. Consider approval to make lump sum payment of District’s Side Fund 
to CalPERS by November 15, 2011. 

8. WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 

a. Committee Report 
b. Presentation of electronic Operations and Maintenance Manual 

9. STAFF REPORTS: 

a. Elm Street area sewer project. 

10. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

a. California Special Districts Association meeting. 

11. MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

12. ADJOURN: 
 
Next resolution no. 3035  
 
Next regular meeting date:  Monday, November 14, 2011, 6:30 PM at the 
Novato Sanitary District office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, CA. 
 
Board Strategic Planning Workshop, Tuesday, November 15, 2011, 9:00 AM 
to approximately 3:30 PM. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at (415) 892-
1694 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  Notification prior to the meeting will 
enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. 
 
 
 



 
October 10, 2011 

 
 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District was held at 
6:30 p.m., Monday, October 10, 2011, preceded by a closed session beginning at 5:30 
p.m. at the District offices, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
At 5:32 p.m. President Long announced the Board would meet in closed session to 
discuss the following matters on the Closed Session Agenda:   
 
CLOSED SESSION CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING 
LITIGATION – (subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9). 
 
Potential Administrative Civil Liability in the matter of sanitary sewer overflows and 
treatment plant violations including California Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Complaint No. R2-2010-0102. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT FOR CLOSED SESSION:  President William C. Long, 
Members Michael Di Giorgio, Jean Mariani, George C. Quesada and Dennis Welsh.   
 
STAFF PRESENT: Manager-Engineer-Secretary Beverly B. James, Deputy-Manager 
Engineer Sandeep Karkal and District Counsel Kent Alm.  Also present:  Davina Pujari, 
Attorney with Barg, Coffin, Lewis and Trapp. 
 
The Closed Session ended at 6:32 p.m. 
 
Open session began at 6:38 p.m. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT FOR OPEN SESSION:  President William C. Long, 
Members Michael Di Giorgio, Jean Mariani, George C. Quesada and Dennis Welsh.   
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Manager-Engineer-Secretary Beverly James, Deputy Manager-
Engineer Sandeep Karkal, Administrative Secretary Julie Borda and District Counsel 
Kent Alm. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Steve Clary, RMC Water & Environment 
 John Coleman, Novato resident 
 Brant Miller, Novato resident 
 Jerry Peters, Novato resident 
 Dasse de Iongh, District employee and Novato resident 
 Joe Chakkalakel, Novato resident 
 L. Chakkalakel, Novato resident 
 Suzanne Crow, Novato resident 
 Deb & Jamie Erze, Novato resident 
 John P. O’Hare, Veolia Water 
 John Bailey, Veolia Water 



October 10, 2011 
Page 2 

 
 Bob Guinan, Novato resident 
 Joe Carlomagno, Novato resident 
 Wally Holmes, Novato resident 
 Vicky Carlomagno, Novato resident 
 Al Zeidler, Novato resident 
 Gene Ruda, Novato resident 
 Stefan Matan, Novato resident 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:   
 
On motion of Member Quesada, seconded by Member Mariani, and carried 
unanimously, the agenda was approved as mailed. 
 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION: 
 
No reportable action was taken. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   None. 
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 
Consider approval of minutes of the September 26, 2011 Board meeting. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Quesada and carried 
unanimously, the September 26, 2011 Board meeting minutes were approved. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:   
 
On motion of Member Quesada, seconded by Member Mariani, and carried 
unanimously, the following Consent Calendar item was approved: 
 

a. Approval of regular disbursements in the amount of $300,728.28, project 
account disbursements in the amount of $90,799.82 and Board member 
disbursements in the amount of $3,342.30. 

 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE PROJECT 72609: 
 
Consultant report on odor control.  The Manager introduced Steve Clary, Engineer, 
RMC Water and Environment.  Mr. Clary presented handouts to the Board and public 
and proceeded to show a PowerPoint presentation titled “Odor Control Evaluation, 10 
October 2011”.  The presentation provided an outline of the summary of findings as 
discovered by James Joyce, independent expert in odor control of wastewater facilities.  
Mr. Clary pointed out that Mr. Joyce was on site at the District on August 30th and 31st to 



October 10, 2011 
Page 3 

 
conduct an odor survey of the Novato treatment plant and the Lea Dr. neighborhood 
and to review/inspect the existing odor control facilities.  Mr. Clary discussed Mr. 
Joyce’s findings.  His report noted that the biofilters are appropriate for Novato Sanitary 
District’s facility and the design airflow rates are adequate, but that the design airflow 
rates are not being achieved, causing foul air to escape.   
 
Mr. Clary stated that the reason the airflow rates are being restricted is that the geo 
fabric interface in the odor bed is plugged which reduces the total air flow to half of 
design capacity and forces foul air through the P-trap and drains.  He identified several 
locations in the plant where foul air is/can be escaping. 
 
Mr. Clary outlined proposed recommendations to be implemented to alleviate the foul 
odors, including removal of the geo fabric interface and replacing the sand media used 
in the odor beds with an organic media to a greater depth than is currently being used.  
He stated that in addition, air leaks would be repaired at the fans and the depth of the P-
traps would be increased.   
 
Mr. Clary invited questions and responded to the audience, further detailing findings of 
the report.  Participants expressed their continued distress over the odors and were 
deeply disappointed at the length of time it has taken the District to find a solution to the 
odor problem.   
 
The Manager discussed the best and most appropriate way to stay in consistent 
communication with the treatment facility neighbors.  She stated that information and 
odor updates are critical and should be disseminated to the neighborhood as they are 
available.  She stated that neighbors have been provided with an email address to 
contact the District with odor complaints and concerns, 24 hours a day.  The Board 
discussed the email method of communication currently being used. 
 
The Board agreed that the odor issue is critical and of the highest urgency to alleviate 
completely.  They requested that if any odor relief measures can be taken immediately, 
these repairs should be completed prior to the full scope of repairs.  They stated that 
costs should not be a consideration.  President Long requested the repairs which 
address the technical issues be handled in an expedited manner. 
 
Members of the audience discussed their concerns regarding potential health concerns 
due to the odors and possible chemicals released into the air.  Member Mariani asked 
that any studies which show odor composition and health effects be made available to 
the public.  The Manager stated she would look into these studies and provide them to 
the public.   
 
Direct staff to develop a timetable to implement recommendations. 
 
President Long directed staff to expedite the repair process.   
 



October 10, 2011 
Page 4 

 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Mariani and carried with the 
following vote, Board directed Staff to prepare a time-table for the next regular Board 
meeting to address the details of the technical issues involved with solving the odor bed 
geo fabric interface problem.  Ayes:  Di Giorgio, Long, Mariani, Welsh.  Noes:  
Quesada. 
 
Member Quesada stated that he voted no to the motion because he feels the Board 
should meet in one week with a time-table to implement the repair recommendations.  
He stated that waiting two weeks is not acceptable. 
 
District Counsel Kent Alm stated that there has been tremendous discouragement with 
the odor issue but he was encouraged that RMC Water & Environment has stepped up 
and accepted blame for the problem.  He stated this helps to expedite the process for 
resolution. 
 
Mr. Clary stated that RMC can expedite the repair process at the Board’s discretion.  He 
stated that RMC has adopted the position that they will pay for the repair of the odor 
control issues because the problem was confirmed to be a design flaw.  He provided to 
the Board and the public a 17 page correspondence from V&A Consulting Engineers 
which outlined the independent review by James Joyce.  The report provided a 
discussion of the odor issue and presented recommendations to solve the problem. 
 
President Long called for a five minute recess at 7:57 p.m. 
 
President Long reconvened the meeting at 8:05 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – SANITARY CODE REVISIONS: 
 
Open hearing.  President Long opened the Public Hearing at 8:05 p.m.  The Manager 
stated that the documents provided to the Board contained revisions to Ordinance No. 
115 to comply with Provision 1 of the Regional Board’s Order No. R2-2011-0009.  She 
noted that the proposed Ordinance had been reviewed and approved by legal counsel 
and is ready for Board adoption. 
 
Public comment on proposed revisions.  There was no public comment on the 
Ordinance. 
 
Close hearing.  President Long closed the Public Hearing at 8:08 p.m. 
 
SANITARY CODE REVISIONS: 
 
Consider adoption of Ordinance No. 115 amending Sanitary Code (Ordinance No. 70).  
The Manager stated that Ordinance No. 115 would replace sections of Ordinance No. 
70.  President Long pointed out an error on page 16, Sec. 809, item (a) and requested 



October 10, 2011 
Page 5 

 
the text be changed as follows:  Any liquid or vapor having a closed-cup flashpoint 
lower than 60 degrees C (140 degrees F). 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Quesada and carried 
unanimously, the Board adopted Ordinance No. 115 with the above noted revisions. 
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Certificates of Participation sale.  The Manager outlined the Certificates of Participation 
(COP) sale which took place on September 27, 2011 and noted that Morgan Stanley & 
Co.’s bid was accepted as follows:  true interest cost: 4.112659%; par amount: 
$21,750,000; bid: $22,000,125.  She stated that the annual payments will vary starting 
at $1,685,697.50 and decreasing to $1,450,787.50 at the end of 20 years.  She noted 
that this payment schedule is consistent with the projections in the financial analysis 
presented in the Preliminary Offering Statement.  The Manager stated that the bond 
documents have been signed and the first transfer to Bank of New York Mellon will take 
place on October 13, 2011.   
 
Member Di Giorgio congratulated the finance committee on securing the bond at such a 
low interest rate. 
 
The Manager stated that Bartle Wells would be reviewing investment options for the 
COP funds the District receives. 
 
Member Quesada requested letters of appreciation be prepared for Tom Gaffney, Bartle 
Wells Associates and Chick Adams, Jones Hall Bond Counsel.  The Manager stated 
that she would prepare the letters.   
 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 
 
North Bay Watershed Association meeting.  Member Di Giorgio discussed his 
attendance at this meeting which was held in Petaluma on October 7th.  He noted that 
Bruce Wolfe, Regional Water Quality Control Board, presented a very informative 
regulatory update. 
 
Member Welsh questioned the status of the proposed sewer main repairs on East Ct. 
which were brought forth by Mr. Jim Henderson at the previous Board meeting.  
 
Member Quesada questioned if Board members could attend any and all committee 
meetings solely as part of the audience, not as a member.  District Counsel Kent Alm 
stated that the Brown Act was amended several years ago to address these 
circumstances.  He stated that if a committee meeting is being held and additional 
Board members are in attendance, the Board members can only act as a member of the 
public and cannot participate in any way in the meeting.  He noted that if the additional 
member participated, this would be a violation of the Brown Act.  Mr. Alm stated he 



October 10, 2011 
Page 6 

 
does not recommend that Board members attend committee meetings in which they are 
not a member.  He stated that if Board members wish to attend, the Board may declare 
in advance that the committee meeting be called a “workshop”.  
 
MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS:   
 
The Wastewater Operations Committee meeting will be held on October 17th at  
2:00 p.m. at the District office. 
 
An Audit Committee meeting is tentatively scheduled for October 18th, time to be 
determined. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Board, President 
Long adjourned the Board meeting at 8:33 p.m. 
 
          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
          Beverly B. James 
          Secretary 
 
Julie Borda, Recording 



s:\board reports\2011\october\second half\staff report - ph for norcal dyeworks.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   Consent Calendar: 
Pretreatment  -  Norcal Dyeworks 

MEETING DATE: October 24, 2011 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Adopt a resolution providing relief on pH limits for Norcal Dyeworks facility and setting the 
revised pH limits. 
 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:  
 
Norcal Dyeworks has requested upper pH limit relief of pH 10.5 from pH 8.5 discharge permit 
for its facility at 46 Digital Drive, #4.  The permit language shall read as follows: 
 
“pH – the permittee shall maintain the pH within the range of 5.5 to 10.5” 
 
The basis of the upper limit relief can be found in section 207 of the District’s Sanitary Code: 
‘When any person by reason of special circumstances is of the opinion that any provision of 
this Ordinance is unjust or inequitable as applied to he/she premises, he/she may make 
written application to the Board, stating the special circumstances, citing the provision 
complained of, and requesting suspension or modification of that provision as applied to 
his/her premises,’ 
 
There is no potential for adverse impacts on the District’s pipes or equipment from the 
change.  In the past, the Board has approved other pH variances of the upper limit from pH 
8.5 to 10.5: 
 

1/12/09 – Norcal Dyeworks Resolution No. 3000 
 
Therefore, Norcal Dyeworks is requesting the Board approve granting the requested relief on 
the pH limits for Norcal Dyeworks, and adopt the attached resolution that documents approval 
and sets the revised pH limits.   
 
 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES:  Deny approval.  

BUDGET INFORMATION:  N/A 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3035 
  

A RESOLUTION APPROVING RELIEF ON pH LIMITS, 
AND SETTING REVISED pH LIMITS AND TIME LIMITATIONS  
FOR NORCAL DYEWORKS, 46 DIGITAL DRIVE, #4, NOVATO 

 
 
WHEREAS, the District has received application for upper limit relief of pH 10.5 from pH 

8.5 for Norcal Dyeworks’ (Permittee) discharge permit for its 46 Digital Drive, #4 facility; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 207 of the Sanitary Code of Novato Sanitary District states that 

relief from any provision of said Code may be made by Resolution of the Board; and   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED AND ORDERED as 
follows: 
  

A. The Permittee shall maintain the pH within the range of 5.5 to 10.5. 
 

B. In addition, District staff will continue to use Section 401.17 of Title 40 of the 
Code of Federal Regulations (40 CFR §401.17) as the basis to exempt 
excursions from the 5.5  to 10.5 pH range subject to the following limitations: 

  
(1)  The total time during which the pH values are outside the required range 

of pH values shall not exceed 7 hours and 26 minutes in any calendar 
month; and   

(2) No individual excursion from the range of pH values shall exceed 60 
minutes. 

 
*    *     *     *     *     *     * 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted 

by the Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District, Marin County, California, at a meeting 
thereof duly held on the 24th day of October, 2011, by the following vote: 
 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Directors:   
NOES,  Directors:    
ABSENT,  Directors:    
 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       President, Board of Directors 

ATTEST:          Novato Sanitary District 
 
 

 ____________________ 
          Secretary  
Novato Sanitary District 
 
s:\board resolutions\norcaldyeworks ph.doc 



Date Num Name Credit

Oct 24, 11
10/24/2011 53572 PSC 44,814.10
10/24/2011 53539 Barg, Coffin, Lewis & Trapp 18,332.72
10/24/2011 53577 Veolia Water North America, ... 8,538.63
10/24/2011 53567 Novato, City 7,265.75
10/24/2011 53564 North Marin Water District 7,032.33
10/24/2011 53543 California Diesel & Power 4,962.77
10/24/2011 53561 Marin/Sonoma Mosquito Dist 4,116.40
10/24/2011 53531 American Express-22062 3,735.14
10/24/2011 53558 Lincoln Financial Group-401a... 3,403.54
10/24/2011 53551 EOA, Inc. 3,393.18
10/24/2011 53549 Eaton Corporation 3,043.00
10/24/2011 53544 CDPH - Environmental Labor... 2,811.00
10/24/2011 53552 Fuel Oil Polishing Company 2,500.00
10/24/2011 53559 Locati, Charles & Gail 2,384.00
10/24/2011 53571 Pareto Co. 2,048.00
10/24/2011 53574 Royal Petroleum Company 2,039.97
10/24/2011 53542 Brown & Caldwell, Inc. 1,421.25
10/24/2011 53573 Roy's Sewer Service, Inc. 1,200.00
10/24/2011 53556 Kaiser Permanente 1,157.78
10/24/2011 53541 BoundTree Medical, LLC 956.11
10/24/2011 53580 VWR International Inc. 824.73
10/24/2011 53581 Waterman Industries, GNI W... 789.52
10/24/2011 53550 Empire Mini Storage - Novato 730.00
10/24/2011 53538 BakerCorp 717.82
10/24/2011 53548 Denbeste Transportation Inc. 650.00
10/24/2011 53555 Johnson Controls, Inc. 607.00
10/24/2011 53553 Ikon Office Solutions 584.10
10/24/2011 53563 North Marin Auto Parts 511.63
10/24/2011 53557 Labworks Equipment, Inc. 403.34
10/24/2011 53578 Verizon 388.99
10/24/2011 53575 Siemens Industry, Inc. 272.00
10/24/2011 53582 Whitney, Larry 260.00
10/24/2011 53529 Alhambra 251.37
10/24/2011 53545 ControlCo Automation 177.00
10/24/2011 53547 Datco Billing Inc. 163.80
10/24/2011 53560 Mariani, Jean 160.51
10/24/2011 53566 Novato Radiator & Air Conditi... 155.70
10/24/2011 53546 CWEAmembers 132.00
10/24/2011 53554 Independent Journal 118.50
10/24/2011 53579 Verizon California 112.84
10/24/2011 53569 Orkin Pest Control, Inc. 105.45
10/24/2011 53535 AT&T-234-341-6561 95.38
10/24/2011 53562 North Bay Portables, Inc. 92.36
10/24/2011 53565 Novato Car Wash 78.94
10/24/2011 53534 AT&T-233-841-3672 62.76
10/24/2011 53540 Barnett Medical LLC 45.00
10/24/2011 53568 O'Reilly Auto Parts 40.98
10/24/2011 53537 AT&T-415-883-7312 37.10
10/24/2011 53532 AT&T-233-841-3670 31.71
10/24/2011 53533 AT&T-233-841-3671 31.38
10/24/2011 53536 AT&T-237-267-0607 31.38
10/24/2011 53576 Staples Business Adv Inc. 21.69
10/24/2011 53530 All Star Rents LLP 19.32
10/24/2011 53570 Pacific, Gas & Electric 14.78

Oct 24, 11 133,874.75

Novato Sanitary District
10/21/11 Operating Check Register

October 24, 2011

Page 1



 3:41 PM
 10/21/11

 Novato Sanitary District
 Operating Checks Detail for 10/24/11

 All Transactions

Date Num Account Amount

Alhambra

09/29/2011 511765809291166100 · Engineering Supplies 251.37

Total Alhambra 251.37

All Star Rents LLP

10/17/2011 268661 66090 · Office Expense 19.32

Total All Star Rents LLP 19.32

American Express-22062

10/19/2011 October 15 201 66090 · Office Expense 275.80

10/19/2011 October 15 201 66090 · Office Expense 313.51

10/19/2011 October 15 201 60150 · Repairs & Maintenance 79.92

10/19/2011 October 15 201 66090 · Office Expense 475.61

10/19/2011 October 15 201 66170 · Travel, Meetings & Training 2,486.06

10/19/2011 October 15 201 64100 · Operating Supplies 34.75

10/19/2011 October 15 201 60100 · Operating Supplies 34.74

10/19/2011 October 15 201 65100 · Operating Supplies 34.75

Total American Express-22062 3,735.14

AT&T-233-841-3670

10/07/2011 233 841-3670 565193 · Telephone 31.71

Total AT&T-233-841-3670 31.71

AT&T-233-841-3671

10/07/2011 233 841-3671 665193 · Telephone 31.38

Total AT&T-233-841-3671 31.38

AT&T-233-841-3672

10/07/2011 233-841-3672 865193 · Telephone 62.76

Total AT&T-233-841-3672 62.76

AT&T-234-341-6561

10/07/2011 234-341-6561 165193 · Telephone 95.38

Total AT&T-234-341-6561 95.38

AT&T-237-267-0607

10/07/2011 237-267-0607 665193 · Telephone 31.38

Total AT&T-237-267-0607 31.38

AT&T-415-883-7312

10/07/2011 415-883-7312 061000-4 · Water/Permits/Telephone 37.10

Total AT&T-415-883-7312 37.10

 Page 1 of 7



 3:41 PM
 10/21/11

 Novato Sanitary District
 Operating Checks Detail for 10/24/11

 All Transactions

Date Num Account Amount

BakerCorp

09/30/2011 1339743-001 60100 · Operating Supplies 717.82

Total BakerCorp 717.82

Barg, Coffin, Lewis & Trapp

10/14/2011 27784 66122 · Attorney Fees 18,332.72

Total Barg, Coffin, Lewis & Trapp 18,332.72

Barnett Medical LLC

09/09/2011 18197 64170 · Pollution Prevention/Public Ed 45.00

Total Barnett Medical LLC 45.00

BoundTree Medical, LLC

09/26/2011 80646293 64170 · Pollution Prevention/Public Ed 391.70

10/04/2011 80650757 64170 · Pollution Prevention/Public Ed 564.41

Total BoundTree Medical, LLC 956.11

Brown & Caldwell, Inc.

10/10/2011 11155717 66122 · Attorney Fees 1,421.25

Total Brown & Caldwell, Inc. 1,421.25

California Diesel & Power

09/14/2011 86397 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 1,310.01

09/15/2011 86299 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 325.00

09/15/2011 86300A 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 325.00

09/15/2011 86302 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 475.00

09/15/2011 86301 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 325.00

09/15/2011 86303 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 325.00

09/15/2011 86301B 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 102.76

09/15/2011 86301A 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 325.00

09/15/2011 86302A 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 325.00

09/15/2011 86300A1 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 325.00

09/16/2011 86398 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 475.00

 Page 2 of 7



 3:41 PM
 10/21/11

 Novato Sanitary District
 Operating Checks Detail for 10/24/11

 All Transactions

Date Num Account Amount

09/16/2011 86398A 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 325.00

Total California Diesel & Power 4,962.77

CDPH - Environmental Laboratory Accred

10/20/2011 01/31/2012 64201 · Permits & Fees 2,811.00

Total CDPH - Environmental Laboratory Accred 2,811.00

ControlCo Automation

10/07/2011 35476 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 177.00

Total ControlCo Automation 177.00

CWEAmembers

10/20/2011 Besnia 2012 66080 · Memberships 132.00

Total CWEAmembers 132.00

Datco Billing Inc.

10/01/2011 81229 66123 · O/S Contractual 163.80

Total Datco Billing Inc. 163.80

Denbeste Transportation Inc.

09/28/2011 31960 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 650.00

Total Denbeste Transportation Inc. 650.00

Eaton Corporation

10/05/2011 33816358 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 3,043.00

Total Eaton Corporation 3,043.00

Empire Mini Storage - Novato

10/17/2011 2596 66123 · O/S Contractual 730.00

Total Empire Mini Storage - Novato 730.00

EOA, Inc.

09/21/2011 ND09-0811 64160 · Research & Monitoring 1,478.46

09/21/2011 ND08-0811 64160 · Research & Monitoring 1,914.72

Total EOA, Inc. 3,393.18

Fuel Oil Polishing Company

10/12/2011 FO13.11 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 2,500.00

Total Fuel Oil Polishing Company 2,500.00

Ikon Office Solutions

 Page 3 of 7



 3:41 PM
 10/21/11

 Novato Sanitary District
 Operating Checks Detail for 10/24/11

 All Transactions

Date Num Account Amount

10/05/2011 5020829285 66150 · Repairs & Maintenance 584.10

Total Ikon Office Solutions 584.10

Independent Journal

09/30/2011 4162079 66130 · Printing & Publications 118.50

Total Independent Journal 118.50

Johnson Controls, Inc.

10/02/2011 1-3967740971 66150 · Repairs & Maintenance 607.00

Total Johnson Controls, Inc. 607.00

Kaiser Permanente

10/20/2011 November 201166020 · Employee Benefits 578.89

10/20/2011 November 201121074 · Health Insurance Payable 578.89

Total Kaiser Permanente 1,157.78

Labworks Equipment, Inc.

09/29/2011 10833 64100 · Operating Supplies 403.34

Total Labworks Equipment, Inc. 403.34

Lincoln Financial Group-401a Plan

10/31/2011 October 2011 66020 · Employee Benefits 2,958.54

10/31/2011 October 2011 64020 · Employee Benefits 225.25

10/31/2011 October 2011 60020 · Employee Benefits 219.75

Total Lincoln Financial Group-401a Plan 3,403.54

Locati, Charles & Gail

10/11/2011 SSC Reimuburs41010 · Sewer Service Charges 1,430.00

10/11/2011 SSC Reimuburs51010 · Sewer Service Charges 954.00

Total Locati, Charles & Gail 2,384.00

Mariani, Jean

10/15/2011 CSDA Montery 66170 · Travel, Meetings & Training 160.51

Total Mariani, Jean 160.51

Marin/Sonoma Mosquito Dist

10/06/2011 1083 63150 · Repairs & Maintenance 4,116.40

Total Marin/Sonoma Mosquito Dist 4,116.40

North Bay Portables, Inc.

10/01/2011 143725 63100 · Operating Supplies 92.36

Total North Bay Portables, Inc. 92.36

North Marin Auto Parts

 Page 4 of 7



 3:41 PM
 10/21/11

 Novato Sanitary District
 Operating Checks Detail for 10/24/11

 All Transactions

Date Num Account Amount

09/28/2011 551872 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 511.63

Total North Marin Auto Parts 511.63

North Marin Water District

10/13/2011 8/1/11-10/4/11 60192 · Water 1,083.23

10/13/2011 8/1/11-10/4/11 63192 · Water - Reclamation 5,687.80

10/13/2011 8/1/11-10/4/11 65192 · Water 261.30

Total North Marin Water District 7,032.33

Novato Car Wash

10/10/2011 September 201 66100 · Engineering Supplies 56.96

10/10/2011 September 201 64100 · Operating Supplies 10.99

10/10/2011 September 201 60100 · Operating Supplies 10.99

Total Novato Car Wash 78.94

Novato Radiator & Air Conditioning

09/21/2011 A35580 60150 · Repairs & Maintenance 155.70

Total Novato Radiator & Air Conditioning 155.70

Novato, City

10/10/2011 1902 60060 · Gas, Oil & Fuel 2,410.38

10/10/2011 1902 61000-4 · Water/Permits/Telephone 2,445.00

10/10/2011 1902 63060 · Gasoline & Oil 771.32

10/10/2011 1902 64060 · Gasoline & Oil 337.45

10/10/2011 1902 65060 · Gasoline & Oil 482.08

10/10/2011 1902 66060 · Gasoline & Oil 819.52

Total Novato, City 7,265.75

O'Reilly Auto Parts

10/05/2011 2641-189605 65150 · Repairs & Maintenance 40.98

Total O'Reilly Auto Parts 40.98

Orkin Pest Control, Inc.

10/08/2011 68211993 66150 · Repairs & Maintenance 105.45

Total Orkin Pest Control, Inc. 105.45

Pacific, Gas & Electric

10/03/2011 7140098-0 65191 · Gas & Electricity 1.55

10/03/2011 7140099-8 65191 · Gas & Electricity 13.23

Total Pacific, Gas & Electric 14.78

Pareto Co.

 Page 5 of 7



 3:41 PM
 10/21/11

 Novato Sanitary District
 Operating Checks Detail for 10/24/11

 All Transactions

Date Num Account Amount

10/08/2011 641 63150 · Repairs & Maintenance 1,995.00

10/12/2011 642 63150 · Repairs & Maintenance 53.00

Total Pareto Co. 2,048.00

PSC

08/31/2011 4000427513 67500 · Household Hazardous Waste 12,526.60

09/28/2011 4000438406 67500 · Household Hazardous Waste 16,289.50

09/30/2011 4000439919 67500 · Household Hazardous Waste 15,998.00

Total PSC 44,814.10

Roy's Sewer Service, Inc.

10/12/2011 174510 63150 · Repairs & Maintenance 1,200.00

Total Roy's Sewer Service, Inc. 1,200.00

Royal Petroleum Company

10/05/2011 494802 61000-5 · Gas &  Electricity 2,039.97

Total Royal Petroleum Company 2,039.97

Siemens Industry, Inc.

10/03/2011 900407271 64150 · Repairs & Maintenance 272.00

Total Siemens Industry, Inc. 272.00

Staples Business Adv Inc.

10/01/2011 8019811863 66090 · Office Expense 21.69

Total Staples Business Adv Inc. 21.69

Veolia Water North America, Inc.

07/01/2011 3779 61000-2 · Insurance & Bonds 4,223.07

08/23/2011 6228 61000-2 · Insurance & Bonds 4,315.56

Total Veolia Water North America, Inc. 8,538.63

Verizon

09/28/2011 EQ1158416-11 65193 · Telephone 388.99

Total Verizon 388.99

Verizon California

10/10/2011 070720 66193 · Telephone 112.84

Total Verizon California 112.84

VWR International Inc.

 Page 6 of 7



 3:41 PM
 10/21/11

 Novato Sanitary District
 Operating Checks Detail for 10/24/11

 All Transactions

Date Num Account Amount

09/28/2011 47073660 64100 · Operating Supplies 824.73

Total VWR International Inc. 824.73

Waterman Industries, GNI Waterman, LLC

10/06/2011 118370 63150 · Repairs & Maintenance 789.52

Total Waterman Industries, GNI Waterman, LLC 789.52

Whitney, Larry

10/18/2011 10182011 64160 · Research & Monitoring 260.00

Total Whitney, Larry 260.00

TOTAL 133,874.75

 Page 7 of 7



Date Num Name Credit

Oct 24, 11
10/24/2011 53490 Gateway Pacific Contractors, ... 296,445.06
10/24/2011 53488 Covello Group, The 60,990.12
10/24/2011 53489 Gateway Pacific Contractors -... 32,938.34
10/24/2011 53491 Linscott Engineering Contract... 27,654.31
10/24/2011 53485 Arntz Builders, Inc. 24,316.00
10/24/2011 2208 BakerCorp 10,776.24
10/24/2011 2209 Covello Group, The 5,108.50
10/24/2011 53493 Novato, City 2,770.00
10/24/2011 53486 Bruce Enterprises Parking, S ... 2,000.00
10/24/2011 53495 Whitley Burchett & Associate... 884.00
10/24/2011 53484 Air Technology West 865.45
10/24/2011 53487 Cagwin & Dorward Inc. 669.00
10/24/2011 53492 McNichols Company 408.76
10/24/2011 53494 Verizon Communications 167.75

Oct 24, 11 465,993.53

Novato Sanitary District
10/21/11 Capital Projects Check Register

October 24, 2011

Page 1



 10/21/11  Novato Sanitary District
 Capital Projects Detail 

10/24/11
Date Num Account Open Balance

Air Technology West
10/20/2011 14048 72805 · Annual Trtmt Plnt/Pump St Impr 865.45

Total Air Technology West 865.45

Arntz Builders, Inc.
10/11/2011 1104-310 72804 · Annual Reclamation Fac Imp 24,316.00

Total Arntz Builders, Inc. 24,316.00

BakerCorp
07/19/2011 1324575-002 72609 · WWTP Upgrade - Contract B 5,388.12
10/11/2011 1324575-005 72609 · WWTP Upgrade - Contract B 5,388.12

Total BakerCorp 10,776.24

Bruce Enterprises Parking, S Corp
10/04/2011 15859 72805 · Annual Trtmt Plnt/Pump St Impr 2,000.00

Total Bruce Enterprises Parking, S Corp 2,000.00

Cagwin & Dorward Inc.
08/30/2011 417467 72805 · Annual Trtmt Plnt/Pump St Impr 669.00

Total Cagwin & Dorward Inc. 669.00

Covello Group, The
10/01/2011 2009.046-21 72403 · Pump Station Rehabilitation 22,455.87
10/01/2011 2007.005-54 72609 · WWTP Upgrade - Contract B 5,108.50
10/01/2011 2010.036-9 73002 · WWTP Up - Cont D - Rec- ARRA Fu 37,939.25
10/01/2011 2010.033-12 72706 · 2008 Collection System Improv 595.00

Total Covello Group, The 66,098.62

Gateway Pacific Contractors, Inc.
10/12/2011 73002 Pay #373002 · WWTP Up - Cont D - Rec- ARRA Fu 329,383.40

Total Gateway Pacific Contractors, Inc. 329,383.40

Linscott Engineering Contractors Inc
10/07/2011 Reclamation 72804 · Annual Reclamation Fac Imp 14,040.87
10/07/2011 Treatment/Pu72805 · Annual Trtmt Plnt/Pump St Impr 3,479.56
10/07/2011 Collection Sy 72803 · Annual Collection Sys Repairs 4,909.78
10/13/2011 Main Plant G 72805 · Annual Trtmt Plnt/Pump St Impr 3,115.00
10/14/2011 Sludge Ponds72804 · Annual Reclamation Fac Imp 2,109.10

Total Linscott Engineering Contractors Inc 27,654.31

McNichols Company
09/19/2011 884406 72804 · Annual Reclamation Fac Imp 408.76

Total McNichols Company 408.76

Novato, City
10/06/2011 Encroachmen72803 · Annual Collection Sys Repairs 2,770.00

Total Novato, City 2,770.00

Verizon Communications
10/10/2011 964894 03 73002 · WWTP Up - Cont D - Rec- ARRA Fu 167.75

 Page 1 of 2



 10/21/11  Novato Sanitary District
 Capital Projects Detail 

10/24/11
Date Num Account Open Balance

Total Verizon Communications 167.75

Whitley Burchett & Associates Inc
10/04/2011 NSD 09.1-7 72706 · 2008 Collection System Improv 884.00

Total Whitley Burchett & Associates Inc 884.00

TOTAL 465,993.53

 Page 2 of 2



 10/21/11  Novato Sanitary District
 Payroll and Payroll Related Check Register

 October 25 - 31, 2011

Date Name Credit

Oct 25 - 31, 11
10/30/2011 October  P/R Checks and Vouchers 118,275.87
10/30/2011 Retiree Health Benefits 15,574.27
10/27/2011 PERS Retirement 34,463.23
10/27/2011 PERS Retirement 33,176.34
10/27/2011 CalPers Health 28,967.25
10/27/2011 United States Treasury 23,432.98
10/27/2011 EDD 6,553.44
10/27/2011 Lincoln Financial Group-401a Plan 3,995.88
10/27/2011 Lincoln Financial Group 3,774.80
10/27/2011 State Street Bank & Trust 3,125.00
10/27/2011 Marin Employ Federal Credit Union 517.00
10/27/2011 Local Union 315 480.00

Oct 25 - 31, 11 272,336.06

 Page 1 of 1



s:\board reports\2011\october\second half\odor control rework schedule.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE: Wastewater Upgrade Project: 
Odor Control Facilities Re-work 

MEETING DATE:  October 24, 2011 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Information only 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
At their meeting on October 10, 2011, the Board of Directors directed staff to prepare a 
timeline for the re-work of the odor control system as an urgent matter to address the odors 
impacting the Lea Drive neighborhood. As discussed at the meeting the design team is taking 
responsibility for the re-work and is committed to completing the work as expeditiously as 
possible. After discussions with the design team, it appears that the fastest way to complete 
the work would be to have the contractor currently onsite, Gateway Pacific, do the work under 
a change order. The following schedule assumes that this will be possible. If not, an additional 
month should be added to the dates shown to allow for the additional time required to bid the 
project and mobilize a different contractor. 
 Activity Completion Date 
Prepare plans and specifications November 14, 2011 
Issue Change Order November 15, 2011 
Complete construction January 19, 2012 
 
District staff has also arranged to add Bioxide to the four main pump stations tributary to the 
treatment plant. This will be in place by November 7, 2011 and should significantly reduce 
hydrogen sulfide odors. The landscaping between the treatment plant and Lea Drive should 
be complete by October 28, 2011. Staff recommends arranging for the District’s landscape 
maintenance firm to plant vines along the chain link fences to provide further screening. 
 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES:    

BUDGET INFORMATION: 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 



s:\board reports\2011\october\second half\staff report - calpers side fund payoff.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE: California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System – Approval to 
Make Lump Sum Payment of Side 
Fund to CalPERS 

MEETING DATE:  October 24, 2011 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Lump-sum Payment of District’s Side Fund to 
CalPERS by November 15, 2011 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
The District’s Fiscal Year 2011-12 Final Budget includes an expenditure of $1,215.597 to 
prepay the District’s Employer Side Fund to CalPERS.   
 
In 2001, CalPERS formed “Risk Pools” for participating agencies, depending on the number 
of employees.  The District was placed in a risk pool for agencies with less than 100 
employees.  Each District had its own “Side Fund” for unfunded liability that existed at the 
time of formation of the risk pool.  The District’s unfunded liability at that time was $250,000.  
In 2003, the first “Risk Pool” valuation was issued.  There was a change in assumptions by 
CalPERS for interest rates, mortality rates, and projected benefits.  As a result, the District’s 
unfunded liability, or side fund, increased from $250,000 to $902,977, amortized over 20 
years, with interest charged at the rate of 7.75%.   
 
As of November 15, 2011, the Side Fund is projected to be $1,205,537 and accounts for 
approximately 4% of the District’s Employer Retirement Contribution.  Prepayment of the side 
fund will decrease the employer contribution from 14.028% to 10.059%, or a savings of 
approximately $75,090.00 per year. 
 
A copy of the payoff information from CalPERS is included. 
 
 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES:   Do not authorize pre-payment of the CalPERS Side Fund. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:   The CalPERS Side Fund Payoff is included in the District’s 2011-
12 Operating Budget in Account No. 66020-1, a sub-account of 66020, “Employee Benefits”. 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 



 

California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 

P.O. Box 1494 
Sacramento, CA  95812-1494 
TTY: (916) 795-3240  
(888) 225-7377 phone •  (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov  

 

 

 
 
October 17, 2011 
 
CalPERS ID Number: 5952313545 
Employer Number: 0801 
Employer Name: NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
Rate Plan: MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 
 
Re: Lump Sum Payment to reduce 2011-2012 & 2012-2013 pooled employer contribution rates  
 
Dear Requestor: 

 
As requested, 2011-2012 & 2012-2013 employer contribution rate information on your lump sum payment follows. 
 
If you are aware of others interested in this information (i.e. payroll staff, county court employees, 
port districts, etc.), please inform them.   
 
The information is based on the most recent annual valuation and assumes payment by November 15, 2011 and no 
further contractual or financing changes taking effect before June 30, 2013. The Side Fund resulting from risk pooling 
valued at $1,188,158 (including any adjustments due to plan amendments, vouchers, golden handshakes, etc.) as 
of June 30, 2012, will be reduced or eliminated by a lump sum payment in the amount of $1,205,537.  Any later 
adjustments due to plan amendments, vouchers, golden handshakes, or financing changes could increase or 
reestablish a negative side fund.  
 
 
The change in your 2011/2012 & 2012/2013 employer contribution rates after you make the proposed lump sum 
payment, is displayed in the “Change to Total Employer Rate” line below.   
 

Valuation as of June 30, 2009 Pre-Payment Post-Payment 

Projected 6/30/11 Side Fund (SF)  ($1,215,597)     

Proposed Lump Sum Pmt by 11/15/11 
 

 $1,205,537     

Revised projected 11/15/11 SF     $0  

 
 

      

2011-2012 Employer Contribution Rate       

   Risk Pool’s Net Employer Normal Cost  7.684%   7.684%  

   Risk Pool’s Payment on Amortization Bases  1.855%   1.855%  

   Surcharges for Class 1 Benefits  0.520%   0.520%  

   Phase out of Normal Cost Difference  0.000%   0.000%  

   Amortization of Side Fund  3.969%   0.000%  

   Total Employer Contribution Rate  14.028%   10.059%  

       

   Amortization Period            14 years 
average 

            N/A  

       

   Change to 11/12 Total Employer Contribution Rate     (3.969%)  

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

Valuation as of June 30, 2010 Pre-Payment Post-Payment 

2012-2013 Employer Contribution Rate       

   Risk Pool’s Net Employer Normal Cost  7.720%   7.720%  

   Risk Pool’s Payment on Amortization Bases  1.996%   1.996%  

   Surcharges for Class 1 Benefits  0.522%   0.522%  

   Phase out of Normal Cost Difference  0.000%   0.000%  

   Amortization of Side Fund  4.903%   0.000%  

   Total Employer Contribution Rate  15.141%   10.238%  

       

   Amortization Period            13 years 
average 

            N/A  

       

   Change to 12/13 Total Employer Contribution Rate     (4.903%)  

 
To initiate this change, the enclosed Lump Sum Payment Request must be completed and returned to the Fiscal 
Services Division with a wire transfer or a check by November 15, 2011.  A copy should be sent to us.  
 
If you have questions, please call (888) CalPERS (225-7377). 
 

 
BARBARA J. WARE, FSA, MAAA 
Enrolled Actuary 
Senior Pension Actuary, CalPERS 

 



 

  

 

LUMP SUM PAYMENT REQUEST 

 
Please complete and return this form to the following address: 
 
                                         CalPERS 
                                         Fiscal Services Division  
                                         Attn:  Retirement Program Accounting  
                                         P O Box 942703 
                                         Sacramento, CA 94229-2703 
 
Or fax to:  916-795-7622. 
 
If a wire transfer is being used, it should go to the following account: 
 
                                         ABA#0260-0959-3  
 
                                         Bank of America Sacramento Main 
                                         555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1555 
                                         Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
                                         For credit to State of CA, CalPERS 
                                         Account # 01482-80005 
 
Please e-mail FCSD_public_agency_wires@calpers.ca.gov and your actuary on the day of the wire to 
ensure timely crediting to your account.  Any individual wire totaling over $5,000,000 requires a 72 
hour notice.     
 

Employer Name: NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

CalPERS ID Number: 5952313545 

Employer Number: 0801 

Member Group or Plan: MISCELLANEOUS PLAN            

Coverage Group affected by the Payment (choose one within the affected plan): 70001 

Amount:                                                  $1,205,537 

Purpose:                                                  Pay off the side fund  

Base(s) to which payment is applied:           N/A    

 
In recognition of our payment please revise our employer contribution rate effective November 16, 2011: 
 
Name and Title: (Please Print): ______________________________________________________ 
 
Signature:  ___________________________________Date: ______________ 
 
Mailing Address: ______________________________________________________ 

 
City/State/Zip: ______________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone Number: _________________________Fax Number: __________________ 
 
E-mail Address: ________________________________________________ 
 
Fiscal Services verification       Date Received _________    Amount Received_____________ 
                                                 

PERS01F0036 DMC (02-2009)       Reference # _____________ Name and Date:____________ 



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 

August 2011 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
TREATMENT PLANT PERFORMANCE SUMMARY ................................................... 2 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE STATUS /  REVIEW ........................................  2 
CONSTRUCTION UPDATE………………………………………………………………….2 

ADMINISTRATION ...................................................................................................... 3 

SAFETY AND TRAINING........................................................................................... ..3 
ODORS…………………………………………………………………………………..……..3 
MISCELLANEOUS……………………………………………………………………………3   
WORK ORDER STATISTICS………..……….………………………………………………4 
NOVATO TREATMENT PLANT MONTHLY FLOW.......................................................5 
NOVATO TREATMENT PLANT INFLUENT BOD & TSS..............................................6 
NOVATO TREATMENT PLANT EFFLUENT BOD & TSS.............................................7 
NOVATO TREATMENT PLANT BOD & TSS PERCENT REMOVAL............................8 
NOVATO TREATMENT PLANT EFFLUENT AMMONIA...............................................9 
NOVATO TREATMENT PLANT DISINFECTION.........................................................10 
NOVATO TREATMENT PLANT ENERGY kWh/MG....................................................11 
NOVATO TREATMENT PLANT ENERGY kWh………................................................12 
ODOR CHART………………………………………………………………………………..13 
 

COLLECTIONS SYSTEMS AUGUST OPERATIONS 
GENERAL……………………………………………........................................................14 
SEWER MAINTENANCE .............................................................................................14 
PUMP STATION MAINTENANCE................................................................................14 
PUMP STATION CONSTRUCTION.............................................................................14 
SANITARY SEWER OVERFLOWS..............................................................................14 
COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATIONS SUMMARY....................................................15 
COLLECTION SYSYTEM GRAPHS………………….………………………………...….16 
PUMP STATION MONTHLY REPORT………………….………………………...…...….17 
 

RECLAMATION FACILITIES 
SUMMARY…………………………………………………………………………………….18 
RANCHER OPERATIONS……………………………………………………………….….18 
IRRIGATION SYSTEMS……………………………………………………………………..18 
IRRIGATION PUMP STATION……………………………………………………………...18 
DEDICATED LAND DISPOSAL………………………………………………..…………...18 
 
 

 

 

sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 1



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 2



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 3



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 4



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 5



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 6



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 7



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 8



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 9



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 10



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 11



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 12



2
 

1
4
 

1
7

 

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

J
u
l-
1

1
A

u
g
-1

1
S

e
p
-1

1

O
d

o
r 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

sandeepk
Typewritten Text

sandeepk
Typewritten Text

sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 13



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 14



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 15



sandeepk
Typewritten Text

sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 16



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 17



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 18



sandeepk
Typewritten Text
Page 19



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE: Staff Report: Elm Street 
Neighborhood Sewer Facilities 

MEETING DATE:  October 24, 2011 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Information only. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
On June 27, 2005 the District awarded the Collection System Repair Project (2003-03) to a 
local contractor for $2.4 million dollars.  The scope of work on this project included replacing 
sewers in easements between Court Road, East Court, Elm Drive and Mirabella Avenue. 

The contractor began work on the project in late July 2005 and progress was slowed in part 
by lack of supplies due to Hurricane Katrina damaging manufacturing. It became evident that 
the contractor was going to be late completing the project.   

District staff and the project construction manager were concerned that the contractor would 
not start the work in the easements in the Elm Street neighborhood until the middle of winter 
making access a problem.  In addition, District staff and the contractor became less 
comfortable with using directional drilling to install the new sewer given its flat profile. Based 
on these facts the District removed the work from the contract. 

The primary reason for replacing these easement sewers would be because they require 
frequent root removal. Since 2005, the District has placed a higher priority on sewer projects 
that eliminate Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO’s), particularly large overflows due to 
inadequate capacity. Projects were completed on Railroad Avenue, Wilson Avenue, Center 
Road and Olive Avenue to eliminate SSO’s. 

Replacing the sewers in the above easements will require the removal of large trees, sheds, 
fences and other obstructions so staff anticipates that getting the necessary permissions will 
be time consuming. A Right of Way Acquisition company has estimated the cost at over 
$100,000 just to acquire the needed construction rights-of-way. The project has therefore 
been put on hold pending completion of higher priority work. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  N/A. 

BUDGET INFORMATION: NA 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 




